
Licensing 
Committee
Agenda

To: Councillor Chris Clark (Chair);
Councillor Pat Clouder (Vice-Chair) and Councillor Michael Neal 
(Vice-Chair);

Councillors Patricia Hay-Justice, Maddie Henson, Karen Jewitt, Andrew 
Pelling, Niroshan Sirisena, Margaret Bird, Steve O'Connell, Badsha Quadir 
and Robert Ward

Reserve Members: Reserve Members: Robert Canning, Sherwan 
Chowdhury, Nina Degrads, Jerry Fitzpatrick, Felicity Flynn, Pat Ryan, David 
Wood, Sue Bennett, Simon Brew, Oni Oviri, Helen Redfern and Scott Roche 

A meeting of the Licensing Committee which you are hereby summoned to attend, 
will be held on Wednesday, 20 March 2019 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber - 
Town Hall 

JACQUELINE HARRIS BAKER
Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
London Borough of Croydon
Bernard Weatherill House
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA

Kieran Pantry-Melsom
020 8726 6000 x63922
kieran.pantry-melsom@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
Tuesday, 12 March 2019

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
If you require any assistance, please contact the person detailed above, on the 
righthand side. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


2

N.B This meeting will be paperless. The agenda can be accessed online at 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings



AGENDA – PART A

1.  Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 
Committee.

2.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2019 as an 
accurate record.

3.  Urgent Business (if any) 
To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency.

4.  Disclosure of Interests 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest 
is registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests.

5.  Application for Street Designation Order - London Local 
Authorities Act 1990 (Pages 11 - 34)

6.  Rescinding Designation of Licensed streets/parts of streets - 
London Local Authorities Act 1990 (Pages 35 - 46)

7.  Revision to Standard Licensing Conditions for Premises offering 
Special Treatments - London Local Authorities Act 1991 
(Pages 47 - 102)



4

8.  Special Treatments Licensing Fee Setting - London Local 
Authorities Act 1991 (Pages 103 - 124)

9.  Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

PART B



Licensing Committee

Meeting held on Thursday 24 January 2019 at 6.33pm in the Council Chambers, Croydon 
Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon, CR0 1NX

MINUTES

Present: Councillor Chris Clark (Chair);
Councillor Pat Clouder (Vice-Chair) and Councillor Michael Neal (Vice-Chair);
Councillors Patricia Hay-Justice, Andrew Pelling, Niroshan Sirisena and 
Margaret Bird, Jerry Fitzpatrick and Helen Redfern

Also 
Present: Michael Goddard (Licensing Manager)

Fiona Woodcock (Market and Street Trading Compliance Officer) 
James Derby (Solicitor and Legal Advisor to the Committee) 
Michelle Ossei-Gerning (Democratic Services)

Apologies: Councillors Maddie Henson, Karen Jewitt, Steve O'Connell, Badsha Quadir 
and Robert Ward

PART A

1/19  Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2018 were approved as a 
true and accurate record of the decisions taken.

2/19  Minutes of the Last Sub-Committee Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 December 2018 were approved as a 
true and accurate record of the decisions taken.

3/19  Urgent Business (if any)

There were no items of urgent business.

4/19  Disclosure of Interests

There were no disclosures of interests.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



5/19  Application for Street Designation Orders - London Local Authorities Act 
1990

The Committee considered the application to designate a section of public 
highway outside 17 Central Parade, New Addington, CR0 0JB 
(Appendix B).

The Licensing Manager introduced the item, explaining the process of 
designation for street trading, applying for street trading licences and the 
details of the application before the Committee. The Committee was informed 
that the application had been sent to responsible authorities and advertised in 
the local press; no representations had been received. 

The section of highway in question was Croydon Council maintained.

The Applicant was present and informed the Committee that the tables and 
chairs would be brought out every morning and packed away inside the shop 
every night.

In response to questions from the Committee it was confirmed by the 
Licensing Manager that the site was not within the saturation area for street 
trading.

The Committee RESOLVED:

1. To designate 17 Central Parade, New Addington for the purposes of street 
trading.

2. To grant a street trading licence to the Applicant.

The Committee considered the application to designate a section of public 
highway outside 210A Selhurst Road, South Norwood, SE25 6XU 
(Appendix C).

The Licensing Manager introduced the item, explaining the process of 
designation for street trading, applying for street trading licences and the 
details of the application before the Committee. The Committee was informed 
that the application had been sent to responsible authorities and advertised in 
the local press; no representations had been received. 

The section of highway in question was Croydon Council maintained.

The Applicant was present and provided further comment on the application.

In response to questions from the Committee it was clarified by the applicant 
that external food providers would only provide or sell the food within the 
licensed area as food was prepared off site; also safety glass was used for 
drinking on match days.

Page 6



In response to questions from the Committee, it was confirmed by the 
Licensing Manager that the applicant would need to communicate with the 
caterers and the food team, as they would need to know where the food was 
being cooked and how it was being transported.

The Committee RESOLVED:

1. To designate 210A Selhurst Road, South Norwood for the purposes of 
street trading.

2. To grant a street trading licence to the Applicant.

The Committee considered the application to a street trading licence for 
208-210 Brighton Road, Coulsdon, CR5 2NF (Appendix D).

The Licensing Manager introduced the item, explaining the process of 
designation for street trading, applying for street trading licences and the 
details of the application before the Committee. The Committee was informed 
that the application had been sent to responsible authorities and advertised in 
the local press; no representations had been received. 

The section of highway in question was Croydon Council maintained.

The applicant had sent their apologies and was not able to be present to 
provide any comment on the application.

In response to questions from the Committee it was clarified by the Licensing 
Manager that there would be a request for the applicant to position the A 
board away from being directly outside the shop to provide a two metre flow 
for pedestrians.  

The Committee RESOLVED:

1. To designate 208-210 Brighton Road, Coulsdon for the purposes of street 
trading.

2. To grant a street trading licence to the Applicant.

The Committee considered the application to a street trading licence for 
Dingwall Road (near the j/w Caithness Walk), Croydon (Appendix E).

The Licensing Manager introduced the item, explaining the process of 
designation for street trading, applying for street trading licences and the 
details of the application before the Committee. The Committee was informed 
that the application had been sent to responsible authorities and advertised in 
the local press. 

One representation had been received and details were in the bundle but the 
objector had sent their apologies and was unable to attend the meeting. In 

Page 7



addition, the Committee was informed that the objector had sent in some 
further correspondence in support of their objections and this had been 
provided to the Committee Members before the hearing started.  

The section of highway in question was Croydon Council maintained.

The Applicant was present and informed that since they had the trailer they 
have made improvements to the health and safety of the generator and issues 
around the residences and commuters. In response to questions from the 
Committee on health and safety, the applicant stated that the generator, 
which was now in a box, was fuelled and packed safely away every night.

The Committee RESOLVED:

1. To designate the specific area of Dingwall Road requested in the 
application (near the j/w Caithness Walk), Croydon for the purposes of 
street trading.

2. To grant a street trading licence to the Applicant.

The Committee considered the application to a street trading licence for 17 
High Street, Thornton Heath, CR7 8RU (Appendix F).

The Licensing Manager introduced the item, explaining the process of 
designation for street trading, applying for street trading licences and the 
details of the application before the Committee. The Committee was informed 
that the application had been sent to responsible authorities and advertised in 
the local press; no representations had been received. 

The section of highway in question was Croydon Council maintained.

The Applicant was present and provided further comment on the application.

In response to the questions from the Committee the applicant highlighted 
that there had been no past disputes with the residences either side, and they 
were satisfied with the application.

The Licensing Manager advised the Committee that the application site fell 
within the saturation area in the Council’s street trading policy. However, it 
was also pointed out that the site had been previously designated for street 
trading in 2013, albeit for a smaller area. 

Councillor Clouder proposed a motion to refuse the application. Councillor 
Pelling seconded the motion. 

The motion to refuse was put forward to the vote and was carried with five 
Members voting in favour and four Members voting against. 

The Committee RESOLVED:

Page 8



1. To refuse to designate 17 High Street, Thornton Heath for the purposes of 
street trading.

2. To refuse a street trading licence to the Applicant for the increased area.

6/19  Sex Establishment Licensing Fee Setting - Schedule 3 Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

The Committee received the attached report from the Executive Director - 
Place and the item was introduced by the Licensing Manager. The Committee 
was informed that there was no application to consider, the matter for 
consideration was the fee structure as stated in Appendix 1 to the report.

Sex establishment licensing fees should cover the reasonable costs to the 
authority of providing the service. The fees should not cover the costs of 
external matters such as enforcement against unlicensed traders. The fee 
structure proposed was based on an hourly ‘on costed’ rate for officers 
involved in the process. It was a reflection of the amount of time certain tasks 
would take and that had been required for previous applications. The fees had 
on this occasion been slightly reduced. Costs for sex establishment licenses 
were the same regardless of what type of establishment was being applied 
for; all follow the same process. 

The Chair invited Members’ questions on the report and presentation.

The legal advisor for the Committee advised that the statutory requirement 
was for the local authority to set a "reasonable" fee; benchmarking against 
other authorities was not a legal requirement.

Councillor Clouder proposed, and Councillor Neal seconded, that the 
Committee adopt the fees set out in Appendix 1 of the attached report for the 
grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence; and also to delegate 
authority to the Director of Public Realm to undertake reviews and fee settings 
under the provisions of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982.

The motion was put to the vote and was carried with eight Members voting in 
favour of the motion. One Member abstained their vote.

The Committee RESOLVED to agree the recommendations of the report and 
the setting of licence fees under the provisions of Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

7/19  Exclusion of the Press and Public

This was not required.

Page 9



The meeting ended at 8.49pm

Signed:

Date:

Page 10



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE

20 March 2019

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: London Local Authorities Act 1990 

Application for Street Designation Order 
                                                                                    

LEAD OFFICER: Executive Director, Place Department

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Hamida Ali, Cabinet Member for Safer 
Croydon & Communities  

WARDS:                                                                                Thornton Heath

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT: 

This report is specific to this application and has no implications on the 
Council’s Corporate Policies

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  N/A

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1      The Committee is asked to determine whether to designate the site detailed 
           at Appendix A for the purposes of street trading and if designated 
           to then determine whether to grant a street trading licence to the site. 
  

1

Iiguiii   

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s decision on the 
proposal to designate a site in the Borough as ‘licence street’ for street trading 
and the granting of a street trading licence under the provisions of the London 
Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended).

       
3. DETAIL

3.1      The London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended) (The Act) provides a 
legislative framework to control street trading in the Borough. Trading in 
respect of services as well as goods comes within the scope of the Act.

3.2 Licensed street trading may only take place in streets or parts of streets which 
have been formally designated as “licence streets”.

3.3      Appendix A to this report provides details of the designation application. The 
applicant has been invited to attend the meeting.

3.4     If the site outlined in Appendix A is formally designated 
          as ‘licence street’ by the committee then the committee will decide whether 
          to grant a street trading licence.

3.5     The measurements of the proposed display area as outlined in 
Appendix A will allow for the required 2 metre clear distance between the 
edge of the display and the kerb or the nearest item of street furniture which is 
the requirement for roads maintained by Croydon Council or the required 2.8 
metre clear distance for roads maintained by Transport for London (TfL), 
whichever is applicable.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 The application was duly advertised in the Croydon Guardian and brought 
to the attention of the police, planning, highways/TfL (as applicable), parking 
services and the food & safety team.

5 FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS

5.1 The effect of the decision   
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 

5.2      Risks         
           If an applicant is refused a licence on any of the grounds mentioned in 

paragraph 7.2 (a) - (g) he/she will have the right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court against the decision. The decision of the Committee may 
also be subject to Judicial Review.

          An appeal against a decision of the Committee or a Judicial Review of 
          the application process may present financial risks to the Council with 
          regard to any award of costs against it.

Page 12



5.3     Options
         The options available are: to grant the application, to vary the application,              
          with or without further conditions, or to refuse the application.
5.4    Future savings/efficiencies

    There are no savings or efficiencies arising directly from the         
    recommendations in the report.
       

5.5     Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance, Place Department.

6. COMMENTS OF THE SOLICITOR AND MONTORING OFFICER 

            LICENCE STREET

 6.1      If the borough council considers that street trading should be licensed in an 
            area, they may pass a resolution designating any street within the borough           
            as a “licence street” in accordance with Section 24 of the Act.

 6.2     The first decision which has to be made is whether to designate the particular      
location as a “licence street”, which in turn would permit the consideration of a 
licence application.

 6.3 Under Section 24 of the Act, the designation of a location as a “licence street” 
is at the discretion of the Committee and this decision is not subject to any 
direct appeal.

 6.4 Each application must be considered on its own merits.

 6.5   STREET TRADING LICENCE

          If a site has been designated as a ‘licence street’, the committee must then 
          decide whether to grant a licence to trade at that site – a ‘street trading  
          licence’.
         
  7.     GROUNDS FOR REFUSAL

  7.1 Under Section 25(4) of the Act, a street trading licence:

(a) shall not be granted:
 
           (i) to a person under the age of 17 years; or

           (ii) except where the application is made by a company incorporated 
           under the Companies Acts, or by a partnership, for a licence to carry  
           on ice- cream trading to a person, on a corresponding day, days or   
           time, who holds a street trading licence in any other licence street 
           granted under this Part of the Act but nothing in this paragraph shall 
           prevent the renewal of such a licence; or

          (iii)       except where the application is made by a company incorporated       

Page 13



under the Companies Acts, or by a partnership, for a licence to carry on 
ice-cream trading to a body corporate or to an unincorporated 
association;

          (iv)      in respect of an application for a licence which is not a temporary   
licence to trade in a street which is not a licence street; or

          (v)    where the street to which the application relates is a street in respect of 
                  which the borough council have by resolution passed under Sub-Section 
                  1) (b) of Section 24 of this Act, specified a class of articles or things, or 
                  services which they will not prescribe in any street trading licence and 
                  the grant of the licence would be contrary to any of the terms of that 
                  resolution;

(b) shall not be granted unless the borough council are satisfied that there    
is enough space in the street for the applicant to engage in the trading in 
which he desires to trade without causing undue interference or 
inconvenience to persons or vehicular traffic using the street.

    7.2      Under Section 25(6) of the Act, the Council may refuse an application 
           on any of the following grounds:

(a) that there are enough traders trading in the street or in any street 
adjoining the street in respect of which the application is made in the 
goods in which the applicant desires to trade;

(b) that the applicant is on account of misconduct or for any other sufficient 
reason unsuitable to hold the licence;

(c) that the applicant is an individual who has without reasonable excuse 
failed personally to avail himself of a previous street trading licence;

(d) that the applicant has at any time been granted a street trading licence 
by the borough council which was revoked or could have been revoked 

           on the grounds that he had refused or neglected to pay fees or other 
charges due to them in respect of the licence;

(e) that the applicant has failed to provide or to identify suitable or 
adequate premises for the storage of any receptacles or perishable 
goods in which he proposed to trade when street trading is not taking 
place;

(f) that the application is for the grant (but not the renewal) of a street 
trading licence; and

(i) the only available position is in that part of the street which is 
contiguous with the frontage of a shop; and

(ii) the articles, things or services mentioned in the application are 
sold or provided at the shop;

Page 14



(g) that
(i) the application is for the grant (but not the renewal) of a street 

trading licence; and

(ii) the only available position in the street is within the curtilage of a 
shop; and

                      (iii)       the applicant is not the owner or occupier of the premises 
                                 comprising the shop.

7.3 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director 
of Law and Governance that there are no additional legal implications arising 
from the recommendations in the report other than those already set out 
within the body of the report.

(Approved by Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf 
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer).   

8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 

8.1 The Human Resources impact of supporting the Licensing Hearings will be 
contained within the budgeted establishments of the Democratic and Legal 
Services and Licensing Teams.

8.2 (Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources, Place 
Department)

9. CUSTOMER IMPACT

9.1 There are no specific customer services issues relating to these applications. 

10 EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 

10.1 The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all 
applicants and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the 
process is accessible to all groups within the community.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

11.1    There are no perceived environmental and design impacts relating to these 
applications.

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 

12.1 The Police Licensing Officer has been consulted on these applications.

13. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

13.1 The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything 
they do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a 

Page 15



public authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the 
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The 
key elements of this include 

 The right to a fair hearing;
 The right to a public hearing;
 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal;
 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time.

13.2 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as 
the Licensing Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet the 
full requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing 
Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can consider 
all aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing of the 
facts).

13.3 So, while it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing 
Committee as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it 
is not. Further, the hearing of all applications are subject to the principles of 
Natural Justice and the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury 
reasonable’.

14. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS 

14.1 Protocols agreed in relation to Licensing Hearings are within the Council’s 
Constitution and will be accessible as part of the Council’s Publication 
Scheme maintained under the Freedom of Information Act.

CONTACT OFFICER:                  Michael Goddard, Licensing Manager, Place 
Department, ext. 61838.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:   Application Forms

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE
20 MARCH 2019

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: London Local Authorities Act 1990 
Rescinding designation of licensed streets/parts of 

streets      
                                                                                 

LEAD OFFICER: Executive Director, Place Department 

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Hamida Ali, Cabinet Member for Safer 
Croydon & Communities  

WARDS:               Waddon, Fairfield, Broad Green, 
New Addington South, Coulsdon Town

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT: 
This report is specific to this matter and has no implications on the Council’s 
Corporate Policies.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  N/A

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
         The Committee is recommended to -
1.1     Give notice of its intention to rescind the designation of the sites listed at 

Appendix 1 to this report for the purposes of street trading and if so, authorise 
officers to proceed with the necessary statutory consultation and notices as 
required by the London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended).

1.2   Resolve that, in the absence of any representations being made within the 
statutory period, the designation of those sites listed in Appendix 1 to this    
report be rescinded and that the Executive Director of Place be given 
delegated authority to publish notice of the resolution to come into force no 
earlier than 28 days after the end of the statutory notice period.

1.3    Note that if representations to the statutory consultation are received they will 
be brought to this committee for consideration as to whether or not the 
designation will be rescinded.

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s views on whether the 
designation for the purposes of street trading of the sites listed in Appendix 1 
to this report, should be rescinded. All the listed sites have been previously 
designated for street trading and have been occupied by licensed street 
traders but are all currently unoccupied and have been for some time. 

3. DETAIL

3.1      The London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended) (the Act) provides a 
legislative framework to control street trading in the Borough. Trading in 
respect of services as well as goods comes within the scope of the Act. The 
Act permits the Council to designate a street or part of a street for street 
trading and it may also rescind such a designation. The following sites, listed 
again at Appendix One to this report have previously been designated by the 
committee for the purposes of street trading and licence holders have traded 
from those sites. However, all the sites are currently unoccupied and this 
report recommends that the committee authorise officers to commence the 
process for rescinding the particular designations.

3.2       The relevant sites are –

 Outside Angell Welding, King Henry’s Drive, New Addington
 Outside Martek Engineering, King Henry’s Drive, New Addington
 Outside 15/17 Imperial Way, Waddon
 Slip Road, Dingwall Road, near the j/w George Street, outside Amp House 

and the former Lloyds Bank premises
 Ampere Way, Waddon, near Ampere Way tram stop
 Ullswater Crescent, Coulsdon, at the j/w Redlands

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 The council shall not rescind unless –
      (a) they have published notice of their intention to do so in a local newspaper   

circulating in their area;
      (c) when appropriate, they have obtained the necessary consent.

      The notice shall–
      (a)  contain a draft of the resolution to which it relates; and
      (b)  state that representations relating to it may be made in writing to the council  

within such period, not less than 28 days after the publication of the notice, as 
may be specified in the notice.

5 FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS

5.1 The effect of the decision   
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 

Page 36



5.2      Risks         
           There are no perceived financial risks involved in this decision.
5.3      Options
           There are no other options arising from this report
5.4      Future savings/efficiencies

  
      None identified
       

           (Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance Place, Residents & Gateway)

6.         LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 

            Rescission of Designation

6.1      The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments that under s.24 of the 
Act, having passed a resolution designating a site for the purposes of street 
trading the Council may by further resolution rescind that designation. Prior to 
doing so it must consult with the Police and if applicable, the licence holders 
trading in the street in question or a body or bodies representative of them. 
Notice of the intention to do so must also be published in a local newspaper 
and notified to the highway authority.  There is a period of 28 days for making 
representations.

6.2      If any representations are received, as soon as reasonably practicable after 
the above period has expired, the Act provides that these must be considered. 
In this case the matter will come back to the Committee. They may then pass 
a resolution rescinding the designation. After which they shall for two 
consecutive weeks publish notice of that resolution which cannot come into 
force before the expiry of 28 days from the date of the resolution.

                  
6.3      Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law, for and 

on behalf of Jacqueline Harris-Baker, Director of Law and Governance and 
Monitoring Officer.

7. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 

7.1 The Human Resources impact of supporting the Licensing Hearings will be 
contained within the budgeted establishments of the Democratic and Legal 
Services and Licensing Teams.

8. CUSTOMER IMPACT

8.1 There are no specific customer services issues relating to these applications 

Page 37



9. EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 

9.1 This report does not require a separate Equality Impact Assessment. 

10. ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

10.1    There are no perceived environmental and design impacts relating to these 
applications

11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 

11.1 If the committee authorise officers to proceed with the necessary statutory 
consultation, the Police Licensing Officer will be consulted as part of that 
consultation.

12. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

12.1 There are no perceived human resources implications associated with this 
report.

13. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct freedom of information/data protection considerations 
associated with this report.

CONTACT OFFICER:                  Michael Goddard, Licensing Manager, Place 
Department, ext. 61838

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  Application Forms

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



LC200319R

REPORT TO: LICENSING COMMITTEE
20 MARCH 2019

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: London Local Authorities Act 1991 
Revision to Standard Licensing Conditions for Premises 

offering Special Treatments        
                                                                                    

LEAD OFFICER: Executive Director, Place Department

CABINET MEMBER: Cllr. Hamida Ali, 
Cabinet Member for Safer Croydon & Communities 

WARDS:                                                                                           ALL

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT: 
This report is specific to this application and has no implications on the 
Council’s Corporate Policies
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. This matter is 
being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the work associated with it is 
contained within the departmental budget. 

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  N/A

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee are recommended to:
1.1      Note that the Leader has delegated authority to the Director of Public Realm, 

to adopt revised/updated ‘Standard Conditions for Places offering Special 
Treatments’ under the London Local Authorities Act 1991.

1.2      Recommend to the Director of Public Realm, that he adopt the 
revised/updated ‘Standard Conditions for Places offering Special Treatments’ 
attached at Appendix One to this report.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

           2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s views in relation to the 
adoption of revised ‘Standard Conditions for Places offering Special 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



LC200319R

Treatments’. The Standard Conditions were originally produced in 2004 and 
was last revised in 2011. 

3. DETAIL

3.1      Section 10 of the London Local Authorities Act 1991(The 1991 Act)` provides a 
legislative framework for the local authority to make ‘licence conditions’ to 
control the standard terms, conditions and restrictions which apply to premises 
offering ‘special treatments’ in the Borough. 

3.2 The current ‘licence conditions’ were approved on 20 January 2011 and are 
applied to all special treatment licences granted by the Council.

3.3      Under Part II of the Act, ‘establishment for special treatment’ means any 
premises in the borough used, intended to be used or represented as being 
used for the reception or treatment of persons requiring massage, manicure, 
acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, chiropody, light, electric or other 
special treatment of a like kind or vapour, sauna or other baths but does not 
include — 
(a) any premises which are not used for gain or reward; 

           (b) any premises where the special treatment is carried out by or under the   
supervision of — 

           (i) a medical practitioner duly registered by the General Medical Council; or 
           (ii) any bona fide member of a body of health practitioners which has given 

notice in writing to the borough council that it— 
           (A) has a register of members; 
           (B) requires as qualification for membership qualifications by way of training for, 

and experience of, the therapy concerned; 
           (C) requires its members to hold professional indemnity insurance; 
           (D) subjects its members to a code of conduct and ethics, including a 

prohibition of immoral conduct in the course of their practice; and 
           (E) provides procedures for disciplinary proceedings in respect of its members; 

and has supported that notice with satisfactory documentary evidence, if 
required by the council; or 

           (iii) in the case of acupuncture, a dentist registered under the [1984 c. 24.] 
Dentists Act 1984. 

3.4      There are a range of treatments offered under the definition of “special 
treatments”, many of which have emerged since the Act was written and 
therefore the Act does not list them all. A Working Group of professional 
officers from the London boroughs has been in place for a number of years and 
this group assesses all treatments and decides, collectively as to whether a 
specific treatment should be defined as a special treatment and therefore 
requires licensing. As a result of updated guidance from the London Special 
Treatment Group, it is felt appropriate to revise & update the existing Standard 
Conditions for Places offering Special Treatments, which are applied 
consistently across London by the majority of other boroughs. A copy of the 
existing conditions with the proposed amendments highlighted in bold and 
italics are attached to this report as Appendix One. 

3.5      The focus of the revisions to the Conditions is to –

Page 48



LC200319R

 provide more detail and greater clarity on the qualifications required by 
operatives to provide the different treatments

 make licence holders/applicants aware that licence holders and their 
treatment(s) providers will be issued with identification badges along with their 
licence and will be required to wear them whilst working at the licensed 
premises. This is to provide assurance to customers that the person delivering 
the treatment is the person who is authorised to do so.

 provide more detail and clarity on the exemption provision in the Act
 greater clarity on the certification to be available at licensed premises and this 

relates to both operatives training and to the structure/fabric of the premises 
itself. 

3.6      All the suggested amendments are considered ‘best practice’ standards by the 
London Local Authorities who attend the London Special Treatments Group. 

3.7     To assist Members, a list of current licensable special treatments is attached at 
Appendix Two.

3.8      The Council is aware of the aims and requirements of the Modern Slavery Act 
2015 with regard to human trafficking, slavery, servitude and forced or 
compulsory labour and in its compliance & enforcement duties in relation to 
licensed premises. The Council will seek to ensure that officers are suitably 
trained to spot any indicators of such activity. 

   
4. CONSULTATION

4.1     There is no requirement on the Council within the Act to consult on 
amendments/revisions to standard conditions attached to special treatments 
licenses. That said, the Licensing Team wrote to all current licence holders on 
28 January 2019 concerning the renewal process for 2019 and in that letter, 
included a Council website link that would take the reader to a list of current 
minimum qualifications for providing specific treatments which will apply to any 
new licenses or renewals in future. To assist the committee, a copy of that letter 
and a list of the current acceptable qualifications is attached at Appendix Three.

5. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations 
There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. This 
matter is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the work 
associated with it is contained within the departmental budget.

2   The Effect of the Decision
There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.

3    Risks
There are no direct risks associated with the recommendations in this report.

     4    Options
There are no other options available to the Council. 

5 Savings/Future Efficiencies

Page 49



LC200319R

None identified.
   
   (Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance Place, Residents & Gateway)

  
6. COMMENTS OF THE SOLICITOR AND MONTORING OFFICER 
      
6.1      The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director 

of Law and Governance that  the Council is authorised to make regulations 
under Section 10 (1) of the London Local Authorities Act 1991, prescribing 
standard conditions applicable to all Special Treatment premises located in the 
London Borough of Croydon.

           (Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf 
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer)

7. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 

7.1 There are no perceived human resources implications associated with this   
report.  

8. CUSTOMER IMPACT

8.1      The London Local Authorities Act 1991 impacts on existing and potential 
licence holders. Well managed licensed premises attract customers and 
contribute to a vibrant local economy.

11. EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA) 

11.1 This report does not require a separate Equality Analysis to be undertaken. 

12. ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

12.1 Fee setting in respect of premises in Croydon licensed for special treatments 
are not considered to adversely impact on the local environment.

13. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 

13.1 There are not considered to be any local crime and disorder implications 
associated with this report. 

14. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

14.1 Article 1 of the First Protocol provides a right to peaceful enjoyment of 
possessions. Both a person’s business and an existing licence are a 
possession and cannot be taken away or interfered with unless the law allows it 
and the action is justified.

           Further, when determining applications under the London Local Authorities Act 
1991, it is necessary to ensure that, as far as possible, the Council’s 
procedures are complaint with the principles in Article 6 of the Convention – the 
right to a fair trial. 

15. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS 

Page 50



LC200319R

15.1 Information that is provided to or held by the Council in relation to applications 
must only be processed and disclosed strictly in accordance with the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 2018 and other appropriate 
legislation including the provisions of the General Data Protection Regulations.

CONTACT OFFICER:                  Michael Goddard, Licensing Manager, Place 
Department, ext. 61838

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:   

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Croydon Council

LC200319R0
 

REPORT TO:  LICENSING COMMITTEE 
20 March 2019

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT:  Special Treatments Licensing Fee Setting –
London Local Authorities Act 1991 

LEAD OFFICER: Executive Director, Place Department

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Hamida Ali
Cabinet Member for Safer Croydon & Communities

WARDS: All

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT: N/a

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
This report concerns the setting of fees for special treatments licensing in the 
borough of Croydon. The Council is entitled to calculate fees that will generate 
income to offset the estimated costs to the Council of providing the service. The 
estimated income from fees will offset the costs of the service. There are no other 
financial implications.

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  

For general release

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is asked to:

1.1 Note that the Leader has delegated authority to the Director of Public Realm to 
undertake reviews and fee setting under the provisions of the London Local 
Authorities Act 1991 in respect of Special Treatment Licensing. Such 
delegation shall not preclude the Director from bringing the matter back before 
the Committee should the Director consider it appropriate to do so.

1.2 Recommend to the Director of Public Realm that he adopt the fees set out in 
Appendix 2 to this report for the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a 
special treatments licence to take effect from 1 June 2019.

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to ask the committee to determine the fees for the 
grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a special treatments licence under the 
London Local Authorities Act 1991 (“the Act”). 

3. DETAIL

3.1    The Council is the licensing authority for the purposes of special treatment 
licensing under the London Local Authorities Act 1991 (the ‘Act’) and is 
responsible for licensing the premises where special treatments are provided. 
Under Part II of the Act, ‘establishment for special treatment’ means any 
premises in the borough used, intended to be used or represented as being used 
for the reception or treatment of persons requiring massage, manicure, 
acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, chiropody, light, electric or other 
special treatment of a like kind or vapour, sauna or other baths but does not 
include — 
(a) any premises which are not used for gain or reward; 

           (b) any premises where the special treatment is carried out by or under the   
supervision of — 

           (i) a medical practitioner duly registered by the General Medical Council; or 
           (ii) any bona fide member of a body of health practitioners which has given 

notice in writing to the borough council that it— 
           (A) has a register of members; 
           (B) requires as qualification for membership qualifications by way of training for, 

and experience of, the therapy concerned; 
           (C) requires its members to hold professional indemnity insurance; 
           (D) subjects its members to a code of conduct and ethics, including a 

prohibition of immoral conduct in the course of their practice; and 
           (E) provides procedures for disciplinary proceedings in respect of its members; 

and has supported that notice with satisfactory documentary evidence, if required 
by the council; or 

           (iii) in the case of acupuncture, a dentist registered under the [1984 c. 24.] 
Dentists Act 1984. 

3.2      There are a range of treatments offered, many of which have emerged since the 
Act was written and therefore the Act does not list them all. A Working Group of 
professional officers from the London boroughs has been in place for a number 
of years and this group assesses all treatments and decides, collectively as to 
whether a specific treatment should be defined as a special treatment and 
therefore requires licensing. Attached at Appendix 1 to this report, for the 
committee’s information, is a list of current treatments that the Special 
Treatments Working Group consider require licensing. 

3.3      There are 156 premises in the borough currently licensed for special treatments 
and this includes beauty therapists, health clubs, tattooists and body piercers. A 
special treatments licence is issued for one year, from 1 April to 31 March and 
the holder is then entitled to apply to renew their licence. A licence holder may 
also apply to vary their licence, perhaps to add or remove a treatment(s) or to 
add or remove a treatment provider (ie. a tattooist) and a licence may also be 

Page 104



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

transferred to another person/body. 

3.4 The Council is the licensing authority under the Act and is responsible for the 
grant, renewal, variation or transfer of special treatments licenses. Section 7 (6) 
of Part II of the Act states ‘An applicant for the grant, renewal or transfer of a 
licence shall pay a reasonable fee determined by the council.’ Section 12 (2) of 
the Act states ‘The person making an application for such a variation of a 
licence shall on making the application pay to the borough council a reasonable 
fee determined by the council.’ 

3.5 Licensing is an integral part of councils’ broader regulatory services. While 
economic growth is a priority for every council in the country, there is also the 
need to ensure that licensing regimes can continue to protect communities and 
visitors; manage public health risks; and remain responsive to local concerns. 
All of this work requires funding and it is an accepted principle that licensed 
activities should be funded on a cost-recovery basis, paid for by those 
benefiting from the licensed activity, rather than drawing on the public purse. 
However, in setting the fees under this and many other Licensing regimes 
which the Council is required to operate, the Council is required to have regard 
to a number of different considerations and legislative requirements and 
parameters, including in relation to the European Services Directive (“the 
Directive”). This Directive, which remains applicable in the UK, aims to make it 
easier for service and retail providers to establish a business anywhere within 
Europe. It includes the principle of ensuring that regulation is transparent and 
that the burdens placed on businesses are kept to a minimum. The legal 
requirements in the Directive do have practical implications for local licensing 
regimes, including fee setting.

3.6     The general principles of the Services Directive apply to all processes and 
administrative procedures that need to be followed when establishing or 
running a service or retail business, including the setting, charging and 
processing of fees for licenses. The core principles of the Directive: non-
discriminatory; justified; proportionate; clear; objective; made public in advance; 
transparent and accessible, apply to fee setting.

3.7     Whilst the majority of the principles are self-explanatory, in the context of fee 
setting, the principle of ‘non-discrimination’ requires a little more explanation. In 
the Directive it is defined as meaning ‘the general conditions of access to a 
service, which are made available to the public at large by the provider [and] do 
not contain discriminatory provisions relating to the nationality or place of 
residence of the recipient’. 

3.8     This applies to the Council when considering fee setting meaning that all    
applicants must be treated equally irrespective of location and/or nationality. 
The Council should not, for instance, seek to subsidise businesses operating in 
one geographical area by offering comparatively lower fees than required of 
those operating in another. Such an approach discriminates against those 
businesses located elsewhere in the locality.

3.9      In the licensing context, the importance of this approach has also been 
established by case law on taxi and PHV (Private Hire Vehicles) licensing. 

Page 105



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

Cummings v Cardiff ruled that the charges within a licensing regime for different 
categories of licence should not subsidise each other; so a surplus gained on 
hackney carriage licenses should not reduce the cost of a private hire vehicle 
licence. Guidance in this area indicates that this analogy be extended to mean 
that the fees received under one licensing regime must not subsidise fees 
charged under another. For instance, a surplus generated by taxi fees must be 
reinvested back into taxi licensing and not used to reduce the cost of, for 
instance, a scrap metal dealer’s licence.

3.10   Under the Directive Councils need to ensure that details of any fees are easily 
accessible online, including the ability to make payments online. Councils 
should be able to separate out the cost of processing an initial application from 
those costs associated with the ongoing administration of a scheme, because 
this latter element cannot be charged to unsuccessful licence applicants. 

3.11   This was a key issue in the Hemming v Westminster case, in which the    
Supreme Court asked the European Court of Justice (ECJ) to rule on how 
Westminster applied its licence fees. The Supreme Court identified two different 
approaches to charging fees:

          (a) Whereby a council charged a fee upon application (covering the costs of 
authorisation procedures) and a subsequent fee to successful applicants 
(covering the cost of administering and enforcing the framework) - the ‘type A’ 
approach;

          (b) Where a council charged a single fee on application covering all costs, on 
the basis that the relevant proportion of the fee would be refunded to 
unsuccessful applicants – the ‘type B’ approach.

3.12   The ECJ published its ruling on the issue on 16 November 2016, following an 
earlier opinion by the Advocate General in July 2016. The ECJ ruled that the 
type B approach of fee setting is not compatible with the Services Directive, 
arguing that the Directive ‘precludes the requirement for the payment of a fee, 
at the time of submitting an application for the grant or renewal of an 
authorisation, part of which corresponds to the costs relating to the 
management and enforcement of the authorisation scheme concerned, even if 
that part is refundable if that application is refused.’

3.13   Therefore, in setting the current fees the Council will need to ensure that the fee 
structures for fees covered by the Services Directive relate solely to the cost of 
authorisation procedures (i.e. the costs associated with reviewing an application 
and granting/refusing a licence). Under the type A approach, on which the 
Supreme Court ruling is still relevant, successful licence applicants could 
subsequently be charged an additional fee relating to the costs of administering 
and enforcing the relevant licensing framework. 

3.14   The Directive also includes specific requirements that apply to the charging of 
fees. Charges must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of the 
processes associated with a licensing scheme. Councils must not use fees 
covered by the Directive to make a profit or act as an economic deterrent to 
deter certain business types from operating within an area.

3.15   The Guidance anticipates that fees should be broadly cost neutral in budgetary 

Page 106



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

terms, so that, over the lifespan of the licence, the budget should balance. 
Those benefitting from the activities permitted by the various licenses should 
not, so far as there is discretion to do so, be subsidised by the general fund. 

3.16   To ensure that fees remain reasonable and proportionate the Council considers 
it appropriate to undertake a review and to establish a review process. It is for 
this reason, and due to the fact that it will entail an administrative assessment 
of the costs to be recovered rather than an engagement of discretion by 
Members’, that a delegation is sought to the Director of Public Realm to 
undertake reviews and fee setting under the provisions of the London Local 
Authorities Act 1991. Such delegation should not preclude the Director from 
bringing the matter back before the Committee should the Director consider it 
appropriate to do so. In addition, if members are minded to agree the 
delegation, exercise of this delegation could be reported back to members for 
information following the annual fee review.

3.17   In recommending the proposed fees set out at Appendix 2, officers have had 
regard to the Open for business: LGA guidance on locally set license fees and 
this guidance includes information on what could be considered reasonable 
fees. These considerations are reflected below within the body of this report for 
members’ consideration. Reference has also been had to the BEIS Guidance 
for Business on the Provision of Services Regulations. As with other areas of 
licensing, regard should also be had to the principles in the Regulators’ Code.  

3.18    In this regard, the LGA guidance makes a number of suggestions as to which 
elements (subject to legislative restrictions) the Council may wish to consider 
including within the fees set. In accordance with the Case law set out above, 
these suggested fees are broken down into two separate elements: initial 
application costs (“Application fee” – Part A) and further compliance and 
enforcement costs (“Grant/Enforcement fee” – Part B).

3.19   The Guidance suggests that initial application costs (“Application fee”) could 
include:

 Administration – this could cover basic office administration to process the 
licence application, such as resources, photocopying, postage or the cost of 
handling fees through the accounts department. This could also include the 
costs of specialist licensing software to maintain an effective database, and 
printing licenses.

 Initial visit/s – this could cover the average cost of officer time if a premises visit 
is required as part of the authorisation process. Councils will need to consider 
whether the officer time includes travel. It would also be normal to include ‘on-
costs’ in this calculation. Councils will need to consider whether ‘on costs’ 
include travel costs and management time.

 Third party costs – some licensing processes will require third party input from 
experts, such as is the case for animal related premises where veterinary 
attendance during licensing inspections is required for certain license types. 

Page 107



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

 Liaison with interested parties – engaging with responsible authorities and other 
stakeholders will incur a cost in both time and resources.

 Management costs – councils may want to consider charging an average 
management fee where it is a standard process for the application to be 
reviewed by a management board or licensing committee. However, some 
councils will include management charges within the ‘on-costs’ attached to 
officer time referenced below.

 Local democracy costs – councils may want to recover any necessary 
expenditure in arranging committee meetings or hearings to consider 
applications. 

 On costs – including any recharges for payroll, accommodation, including 
heating and lighting, and supplies and services connected with the licensing 
functions. Finance teams should be able to provide a standardised cost for this 
within each council.

 Development, determination and production of licensing policies – the cost of 
consultation and publishing policies can be fully recovered where they pertain 
to the licensing regime in question. 

 Web material – the EU Services Directive requires that applications, and the 
associated guidance, can be made online and councils should effectively 
budget for this work.

 Advice and guidance – this includes advice in person, production of leaflets or 
promotional tools, and online advice.

 Setting and reviewing fees – this includes the cost of time associated with the 
review, as well as the cost of taking it to a committee for approval.

3.20    The Guidance suggests that further compliance and enforcement costs 
(“Grant/Enforcement fee”) could include:

 Additional monitoring and inspection visits – councils may wish to include a 
charge for risk based visits to premises in between licensing inspections and 
responding to complaints. As with the initial licensing visit, councils can 
consider basing this figure on average officer time, travel, administration, 
management costs and on costs as suggested above.

 Local democracy costs – councils may want to recover any necessary 
expenditure in arranging committee meetings or hearings to review existing 
licences or respond to problems.

 Registers and national reporting – some licensing schemes require central 
government bodies to be notified when a licence is issued. The costs of doing 
this can be recovered.

 Charging for action against unlicensed traders Councils’ ability to charge for 
these costs as part of a licensing scheme depends on the licensing scheme in 
question.

3.21    In setting the proposed fees, an hourly rate for the particular role(s) that will 

Page 108



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

undertake the particular task(s) has been calculated. This is the ‘on costed’ 
hourly rate for the particular role(s) that perform the task(s) and this also 
includes basic office administration such as resources, photocopying, postage, 
processing fees through the accounts department, recharges for payroll, 
accommodation, including heating and lighting, supplies and services 
connected with the licensing functions and management and supervision costs 
(where relevant). Appendix 2 then sets the associated processes out into a 
series of tasks and the relevant hourly rate was then multiplied by the amount 
of time, in minutes, that it was considered, based on previous experience that 
the individual tasks of that nature would take to complete. These figures were 
then added together to give a recommended fee for Members’ consideration. 
Members will note that the proposed fees have been split between application 
(Part A) and enforcement (Part B) parts. When someone applies for a licence, 
they will be asked to pay the application portion when they apply (Application 
fee) and then, if their application is granted, they will be asked to pay the 
enforcement part (Grant/Enforcement fee) prior to the licence being issued to 
them. 

3.22   The council will aim to undertake a regular review of the special treatments 
licensing regime fees. When considering the fees the council will take into 
account the costs that it has incurred from the previous year/s and set a fee 
based on those costs. If the council does, in reviewing the fees identify a 
surplus or a deficit it will adjust the fees accordingly to either reduce the fee 
levels to reduce the surplus or increase the fee levels to repay that deficit in 
costs from previous years. This means that the fees may fluctuate each time 
the fees are set based on the review of income and cost associated with that 
relevant licensing regime and when having regard to officers’ “on costed” hourly 
rates at that point in time. 

3.23 In light of the above and the referenced guidance, Members are asked to 
consider Appendix 2 - which sets out the proposed fees for special treatments 
licensing under the Act and the component elements of the fees, which are 
recommended for approval. 

3.24    The guidance referenced particularly in paragraphs 3.17-20 above regarding 
fee setting considerations can be accessed via the below links - 

LGA Guidance: 
https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/5%2013%20%20OpenForBusin
ess_02_web.pdf

BEIS guidance: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20121205034810/http://www.bis.gov.u
k/files/file53100.pdf

Regulator’s Code: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/atta
chment_data/file/300126/14-705-regulators-code.pdf

3.25    In determining the fees to be set, Members are referred to the High Court case 
of Hemming v Westminster City Council which established that authorities, in 

Page 109

https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/5%2013%20%20OpenForBusiness_02_web.pdf
https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/5%2013%20%20OpenForBusiness_02_web.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20121205034810/http:/www.bis.gov.uk/files/file53100.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20121205034810/http:/www.bis.gov.uk/files/file53100.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/300126/14-705-regulators-code.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/300126/14-705-regulators-code.pdf


Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

setting/determining fees to be charged could not include within the fees set an 
element for enforcement against unlicensed operators. In addition, one of the 
effects of the EU Services Directive, which remains in force, is that fees 
determined may encompass the reasonable costs of reimbursing the Council 
for the administrative processes of dealing with an application but may not 
include costs of broader enforcement. However, compliance of the licensed 
premises can be taken into account when fee setting. 

3.26    In the light of the above the Council’s fees for special treatments licence 
applications under the Act have been reviewed and the fees set out in Appendix 
2 attached are recommended for approval by Members.   

  
4.   POLICE COMMENTS

4.1 As this report relates to local authority fee setting, comments have not been sought 
from the Croydon Police licensing officer regarding this matter.  

5.   APPEALS

5.1 There are no direct appeal provisions within the legislation with regard to fee setting. 
However, the local authority must only set fees that cover administrative and other 
reasonable costs and an aggrieved party may seek judicial review if they believe 
the fees set are excessive. Judicial review proceedings present financial and 
reputational risk to the Council. 

6. CONSULTATION

6.1 There are no statutory consultation or advertisement requirements with regard to 
fee setting under the London Local Authorities Act 1991. 

7. FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The Council is entitled to calculate fees that will generate income to offset the 
estimated costs to the Council of providing the service. The estimated income 
from fees will offset the costs of the services. 

      
Approved by: Flora Osiyemi, Head of Finance Place, Gateway, Engagement & 
Strategy

8. COMMENTS OF THE COUNCIL SOLICITOR 

8.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director of 
Law and Governance  that there are no additional legal implications arising from 
the recommendations in the report other than those already set out within the 
body of the report.

(Approved by Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf 
of the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer).   

Page 110



Members’ Services Manager to advise if footer code required 

9.        HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 

9.1 There are no perceived human resources implications associated with this 
report. 

10. CUSTOMER IMPACT

10.1    The London Local Authorities Act 1991impacts on existing and potential licence 
holders however these fee changes are not due to have effect until 1 June. 
Well managed licensed premises attract customers and contribute to a vibrant 
local economy.

11. EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA) 

11.1 This report does not require a separate Equality Analysis to be undertaken. 

12. ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN IMPACT

12.1 Fee setting in respect of licensed special treatments premises in Croydon are 
not considered to adversely impact on the local environment.

13. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 

13.1 There are not considered to be any local crime and disorder implications 
associated with this report. 

14. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT

14.1 Article 1 of the First Protocol provides a right to peaceful enjoyment of 
possessions. Both a person’s business and an existing licence are a 
possession and cannot be taken away or interfered with unless the law allows it 
and the action is justified.

           Further, when determining applications under the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, it is necessary to ensure that, as far as 
possible, the Council’s procedures are complaint with the principles in Article 6 
of the Convention – the right to a fair trial. 

15. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION/DATA PROTECTION CONSIDERATIONS 

15.1 Information that is provided to or held by the Council in relation to applications 
must only be processed and disclosed strictly in accordance with the Freedom 
of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 2018 and other appropriate 
legislation.

CONTACT OFFICER:  Michael Goddard, Licensing Manager, X61838.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Application for Street Designation Order - London Local Authorities Act 1990
	LC20March19DesRepAppA

	6 Rescinding Designation of Licensed streets/parts of streets - London Local Authorities Act 1990
	LC20March19DeDesignationCRAppxOne

	7 Revision to Standard Licensing Conditions for Premises offering Special Treatments - London Local Authorities Act 1991
	LC20MarchSpecTreaCondCRAppxA1-A3FINDRA

	8 Special Treatments Licensing Fee Setting - London Local Authorities Act 1991
	LC20March19SpecTreaFeesCRAppxA1-A2FINDRA




